Santa Ana River Flood Protection Agency

Executive Director

Herbert I. Nakasone

Members

City of Anaheim City of Buena Park **City of Cypress** City of Fountain Valley City of Fullerton City of Garden Grove City of Huntington Beach City of Irvine City of Newport Beach City of Orange **City of Placentia** City of Santa Ana City of Seal Beach City of Stanton City of Tustin City of Westminster City of Yorba Linda County of Orange Costa Mesa Sanitary District **O C Sanitation District O C Flood Control District O C Water District**

Mailing Address

P.O. Box 4048 Santa Ana, CA 92702-4048

Email Address: Herb.Nakasone@ocpw.ocgov.com hinakasone22@gmail.com

<u>Phone</u>

(714) 647-3938 (949) 922-1852

Location

601 N. Ross Street Santa Ana CA 92701

Website www.ocflood.com/sarp/sarfpa

SARFPA FULL AGENCY MEETING MINUTES

November 22, 2022, at 4:00 p.m. Zoom Meeting

Attendance/Attendees:

Barbara Delgleize, SARFPA Executive Committee, Mayor, City of Huntington Beach Cathy Green, SARFPA Executive Committee, First Vice President, Orange County Water District James Tyler, SARFPA Executive Committee, OC Public Works, Alt. to Supervisor Don Wagner Scott Minikus, Council Member, City of Cypress Bruce Whitaker, SARFPA Executive Committee, Mayor, City of Fullerton Bob Ooten, Director, Costa Mesa Sanitary District Carlo Manzo, Council Member, City of Westminster Mark Toy, General Manager, Yorba Linda Water District Rudy Emami, Director of Public Works, City of Anaheim Gloria Mendoza, to be determined Kevin O'Toole, Orange County Water District Connor Traut, Mayor, City of Buena Park Gloria Ma'ae, Council Member, City of Anaheim Jake Ngo, Public Works Director, City of Westminster Kim Constantine, Mayor Pro Tem, City of Fountain Valley Kelly Rowe, Director, Orange County Water District Nabil Saba, Public Works Director, City of Santa Ana Jonathan Hernandez, Director, OC Sanitation District, Council Member, City of Santa Ana Rhonda Bolton, Council Member, City of Huntington Beach Pipit Widjaja, OC Public Works Catherine Lapid, Flood Programs, OC Public Works Herb Nakasone, Executive Director, Santa Ana River Flood Protection Agency

1. Call to Order

Meeting Called to Order at 4:04 p.m. by Bruce Whitaker, Mayor, City of Fullerton

2. Pledge of Allegiance

Pledge of Allegiance led by General Mark Toy, Manager, Yorba Linda Water District

3. Approve Minutes of September 22, 2022 Executive Committee Meeting

Minutes of September 22, 2022 Executive Committee Meeting were approved unanimously on Motion by Cathy Green, Director, Orange County Water District and Second by James Tyler, OC Public Works Engineering Manager.

Santa Ana River Flood Protection Agency

4. Proposed Amendments to SARFPA By Laws:

Herb Nakasone identified the proposed amendments to the June 28, 1990 By Laws by showing the amendments on the power point screen for everyone in attendance to review. Herb reported that the proposed amendments were distributed to SARFPA members by email 30 days in advance of the November 17 Agency meeting as required by the current By Laws. Herb Nakasone also reported the Executive Committee had reviewed and discussed the proposed amendments at the September 22, Executive Committee Meeting and recommended its approval.

Executive Director Herb Nakasone reported amendments to SARFPA By Laws were recommended by the Administrative Office of the County of Orange based on a Directive of the Orange County Board of Supervisors. The Board of Supervisors recommended organizations who interacted with the County of Orange included conflict of interest provisions in their By Laws. In discussions with County Council staff, it was determined SARFPA being a separate organization from the County of Orange was not obligated to follow Board of Supervisors Directives. Upon review of the proposed Conflict of Interest provisions included in the County's Directive, Executive Director, Herb Nakasone made modification to the County's proposed wording to fit SARFPA's organizational structure and its By Laws and submitted the proposed wording to County Council staff who concurred in the proposed amendments for inclusion in SARFPA By Laws. The discussions with County Council also included James Tyler, Engineering Manager of OC Public Works who represented the OC Public Works. The inclusion of the proposed amendments as presented to the SARFPA members were approved unanimously on Motion by Jonathan Hernandez, Director Orange County Sanitation District and Second by Carlos Manzo, Council Member, City of Westminster. A copy of the adopted By Laws approved on November 17, 2022 is attached to these Minutes.

5. Proposed amendment to Executive Director's employment contract to allow for a salary increase:

Executive Director Herb Nakasone presented his Resume which included his qualifications and service to SARFPA for the past 11 years along with an explanation for his request for a salary increase. Herb than excuse himself from the Zoom meeting to allow SARFPA members to discuss the proposal among themselves.

James Tyler, reporting for the SARFPA members, indicated the amended employment contract for Executive Director Herbert I. Nakasone was approved by the SARFPA members with a \$300 increase in salary per month for a total of \$1,800.00 per month beginning on January 1, 2023.

6. Santa Ana River Mainstem and Westminster Project Status:

James Tyler, OCPW Engineering Manager reported on the status of the Santa Ana River Mainstem using a Power Point presentation. A summation of his presentation follows:

a. James reported the County staff and its consultant continue to work with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) to have the Westminster East Garden Grove

Santa Ana River Flood Protection Agency

Wintersburg Project (WEGGW) entered in the USACE Los Angeles District's Annual Work Plan.

- b. In regards the Santa Ana River Mainstem Project (SARP), James indicated the USACE continues with the three construction projects underway behind Prodo Dam and is designing the improvements to the Prado Dam spillway along with the emergency repair of the spillway chute. The award of the spillway and its emergency repair is scheduled for award in 2024. Sufficient federal funding has been appropriated for these projects.
- c. The three construction projects underway behind Prado Dam include the River Road Dike, the Norco Bluff Protection, and the Alcoa Dike Protection projects.
- d. The SARP bank protection construction projects between Prado Dam and the Imperial Highway Bridge have been completed and awaiting official turnover from the USACE to the Orange County Flood Control District. The bank protection projects through this reach of the SARP included significant bike trail improvement along the river levees.
- e. James reported the OCPW staff continues to acquire properties behind Prado Dam which are expensive, and many properties will require condemnation or eminent domine court proceedings by the Orange County Flood Control District. In addition, several of the properties will be acquired with immediate possession allowing the OCFCD to acquire the properties with financial compensation to be established by the Courts.
- f. In addition to property acquisitions behind Prado Dam, relocation of utilities such as electric power lines owned by Edison, along with sewer and water lines owned by local municipalities. These utilities are required to be relocated out of the flood zones caused by the raising of Prado Dam. Negotiations for the relocation of these utilities are underway according to James Tyler and may also require court intervention.
- g. James reports both the property acquisitions and the utility relocations are expected to be accomplished before the construction contract for the improvements to the Prado Dam spillway can be awarded.
- h. The remaining SARP project currently under design review is the Santiago Creek Project located in Orange County in the cities of Villa Park, Orange, and Santa Ana. Funding for the project is under discussion between the USACE and the Orange County Flood Control District.

7. Report from Executive Director Herbert Nakasone:

Herb Nakasone thanked SARFPA members for supporting and contributing their precious time towards the organization during the time they served as representatives to SARFPA for their Cities and Special Districts.

8. Public and Representative Comments:

Major General Mark Toy, who recently retired from the USACE and at one time was the USACE Los Angeles District Commander and Commander of the South Pacific Division remarked he is now the General Manager of the Yorba Linda Water District and volunteered to assist SARFPA in its effort to seek approval and funding for the Santiago Creek and Westminster East Garden Grove projects.



9. Adjournment

Meeting was adjourned by Herb Nakasone at 4:55 pm.

Submitted by: Herb Nakasone, Executive Director Santa Ana River Flood Protection Agency

Attachment: Adopted November 17, 2022 SARFPA By Law

BYLAWS SANTA ANA RIVER FLOOD PROTECTION AGENCY

Originally adopted April 23, 1975

Amended June 22, 1977 Amended January 27, 1983 Amended June 27, 1985 Amended June 26, 1986 Amended November 8,1990 Amended June 28, 1990 Amended November 17, 2022

I. ORIGIN AND NAME

Section A.

This organization is a joint powers agency formed December 31, 1974 by an agreement hereinafter termed the AGREEMENT between the County of Orange and the Orange County Flood Control District pursuant to Title I, Division 7, Chapter 5 of the California Government Code.

Section B.

The AGREEMENT provides that the name of the public entity created is the Santa Ana River Flood Protection Agency. This entity shall be otherwise known and termed herein as AGENCY.

II. <u>PURPOSE</u>

Section A.

The AGREEMENT provides that the purposes of the AGENCY are:

- 1. To disseminate information on the flood hazard potential of the Santa Ana River and feasible plans for mitigating the flood threat.
- 2. To seek a position of unanimity in the statement of mutual interest of the citizens of Orange, Riverside and San Bernardino Counties in support of the most feasible alternative plan for flood protection along the Santa Ana River.
- 3. To solicit congressional authorization and appropriations for works of improvement.

Section B.

Additional purposes within the above broad purpose shall be:

- 1. To provide information on the federal flood insurance program as it relates to the flood hazard potential of the Santa Ana River.
- 2. To participate to the extent feasible in the development of plans for mitigation of the flood threat.
- 3. To solicit and obtain necessary state authorization of the federal plan developed and to secure appropriations for cost sharing as authorized by state law.

III. <u>MEMBERSHIP AND ORGANIZATION</u>

Section A. MEMBERSHIP

- 1. Membership in the AGENCY is voluntary and, as provided in the AGREEMENT, shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
 - a. County of Orange
 - b. Orange County Flood Control District
 - c. Incorporated Cities of Orange County
 - d. Any public agency having authority under the Government Code of the State of California to contract for the joint exercise of powers.
- 2. The AGREEMENT specified that the governing body of the AGENCY shall consist of a commission hereinafter designated COMMISSION and comprised of a representative duly appointed from its membership by the governing board or council of each member of the AGENCY.
- 3. In the official action appointing a representative, the governing board or council shall also appoint an alternative representative who may or may not be a member of the appointing body.

Section B. ASSESSMENTS

1. The annual assessment for members shall be established by adoption of a final budget in accordance with Section 4 of the AGREEMENT which requires adoption of a preliminary budget prior to April 1 and of a final budget prior to or at the June

meeting of the COMMISSION.

2. The Executive Director shall give notice in June to each member of the assessment for the ensuing year. The assessments shall be due upon notice and paid prior to August 1.

Section C. WITHDRAWAL

Any member may withdraw from the AGENCY providing the member gives ninety (90) days notice to the COMMISSION and to other parties of the AGREEMENT and provided sufficient funds are deposited with the AGENCY to cover the withdrawing member's share of debts, liabilities, obligations and expenses of the AGENCY as determined by the Executive Committee, the withdrawal shall become effective at the end of the ninety (90) day period.

Section D. VOTING

The AGREEMENT provides that "A quorum for the transaction of business of the AGENCY shall require affirmative approval by a majority of the members present at the meeting at which time such action is taken. The AGENCY shall adopt, from time to time, such rules and regulations consistent herewith for the holding of meetings and the conduct of its affairs." The AGREEMENT also provides: "The general budget must be approved by two-thirds (2/3) of the commissioners of the AGENCY." Consistent with the above:

- 1. Each member of the COMMISSION shall have one vote exercised by the duly appointed commissioner or in his/her absence by the duly appointed alternate commissioner.
- 2. Routine motions for items appearing on the published agenda other than those specified in 3., below, shall require a majority vote of the commissioners present for passage.
- 3. Motions for approval of the general budget shall require a favorable vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the COMMISSION. In the event that two-thirds (2/3) of the COMMISSION members do not attend the meeting when the budget is considered and none of the commissioners present votes to oppose the proposed budget, then absent commissioners may vote subsequently to the meeting within thirty (30) days thereof by filing a letter with the Executive Director.

4. Motions for amendment of the Bylaws or entering into a contract or for items not appearing on the published agenda shall require the presence of one-half (1/2) or more of the members of the COMMISSION and an affirmative vote of a majority present for passage.

Section E. MEETINGS

- 1. The COMMISSION shall meet at least twice a year. Regular meetings will be held the fourth Thursday of June (designated annual meeting) and the second Thursday of November. The location for meetings will be determined by the Executive Committee.
- 2. Special meetings of the COMMISSION may be called by the Chairman or a majority of the members of the COMMISSION.
- 3. Notice of all special or canceled meetings must be mailed to commissioners ten (10) days in advance by the Executive Director.

Section F. POWERS AND FUNCTIONS

The powers and functions of the AGENCY include, but are not 1. limited to, the power to develop, provide and disseminate public information on the flood hazard potential of the Santa Ana River and alternative plans for the flood protective improvements; to solicit, communicate and support actions to secure congressional authorization and appropriations for works of improvement; to make and enter into contracts; to employ a part-time officer for the exercise of the powers described herein; and to contract with one or more of the parties to the Joint Powers Agreement for the employment of the services and personnel needed for the exercise of the powers of the AGENCY; to incur debts, liabilities or obligations necessary to carry out the powers of the members necessary or incidental to carrying out the purposes of the AGENCY.

Section G. DISSOLUTION OF AGENCY

When less than three (3) members remain in the AGENCY or when less than three (3) members remain in common agreement to continue the terms of the AGREEMENT as demonstrated by a vote to the contrary, the AGENCY shall be deemed to be dissolved and, after payment of all obligations, the remaining assets shall be divided equally between the members:

IV. OFFICERS

Section A. OFFICERS

- 1. The officers of the AGENCY shall be a Chairman and a Vice-Chairman and at the option of the COMMISSION, a Secretary.
- 2. Unless the COMMISSION elects to appoint a Secretary from its membership, the Executive Director shall perform the duties of a Secretary but without being a member of the COMMISSION.
- 3. Duties of the Chairman:
 - a. The Chairman shall preside at all meetings of the AGENCY.
 - b. The Chairman shall be a member and the presiding officer of the Executive Committee.
 - c. The Chairman shall be a member ex-officio of all standing committees.
 - d. The Chairman shall sign all documents authorized by the COMMISSION and requiring signature.
 - e. The Chairman shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the AGENCY or by these Bylaws.
- 4. Duties of Vice-Chairman:
 - a. The Vice-Chairman shall perform all the duties of Chairman in the absence of the Chairman.
 - b. The Vice-Chairman shall be a member of the Executive Committee.
 - c. The Vice-Chairman shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the AGENCY or by these Bylaws.
- 5. Duties of Secretary:
 - a. The Secretary shall prepare and mail notices and agendas of meetings in cooperation with the Chairman.
 - b. The Secretary shall prepare minutes of all meetings of the COMMISSION and transmit to all commissioners.
 - c. The Secretary shall prepare correspondence and resolutions as required by the minutes of COMMISSION meetings.

Section B. ELECTION OF OFFICERS

- 1. The officers shall be elected in June of each year for a oneyear term by the AGENCY from among its own voting membership. The term of office of each officer shall commence upon election. Officers may succeed themselves.
- 2. The procedures for election of officers shall be as follows:
 - a. The Chairman may designate the Executive Committee to act as a nominating committee or alternately the Chairman may appoint a nominating committee of five (5) commissioners. The membership of the nominating committee shall be announced by the Chairman during March of each year.
 - b. The nominating committee shall submit its slate of candidates to the membership, in writing, no later than May 15. The election of officers will be held at the annual meeting in June following a call for nomination from the floor and the reading of the nominating committee's slate.

Section C. VACANCIES

- 1. The AGREEMENT provides that a vacancy in the office of Chairman shall be filled by election at the next meeting of the COMMISSION.
- 2. A vacancy in the office of Vice-Chairman shall be filled by vote of the Executive Committee at its next meeting from its membership.
- 3. A vacancy in Past Chairman member of the Executive Committee shall remain until the beginning of the next fiscal year.
- 4. Any other vacancy in the Executive Committee shall be filled by vote of the Executive Committee at its next meeting.

V. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Section A. POWERS AND FUNCTIONS

The Executive Committee shall conduct the business of the AGENCY as may come before it from time to time between AGENCY meetings.

1. The Executive Committee shall supervise and direct the

activities of the Executive Director.

- 2. The Executive Committee shall make recommendations to the COMMISSION respecting the program of the AGENCY, including:
 - a. Development of program objectives, definitions, direction, and priorities.
 - Management of the AGENCY'S programs and coordination of supporting staff and other services;
 - c. Development of financial support programs for AGENCY activities; and
 - d. Preparation, recommendation, and submission of the annual AGENCY budget.
- 3. The Executive Committee shall be responsible for the AGENCY operations not otherwise specified herein.
- 4. The Executive Committee may authorize travel and expenses by the Executive Director within the budget limitations and in case of emergency the Chairman may authorize such travel subject to later ratification by the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee may approve Executive Director expenses for payment by the Auditor.
- 5. The Executive Committee shall be responsible for such other duties as may be prescribed by the COMMISSION or by these Bylaws.

Section B. MEMBERSHIP

The Executive Committee shall consist of eight (8) members being the COMMISSION Chairman, Vice-Chairman and the immediate past COMMISSION Chairman and five (5) members elected from the COMMISSION membership. An alternate to a commissioner may act for the commissioner .in his/her absence.

Section C. MEETINGS

The Executive Committee shall meet on the fourth of Thursday of each odd numbered month except November. A regular meeting may be adjourned by the Chairman by written notice to committee members at least one week in advance. A special meeting may be called by the Chairman or by a majority of committee members.

Section D. OFFICERS

The officers of the Executive Committee shall be a Chairman and a Vice-Chairman. The Executive Director shall be Secretary to the Executive Committee and perform for the committee the same duties as the Secretary of the COMMISSION performs for the COMMISSION.

Section E. VOTING

Passage of any issue before the Executive Committee shall require a majority vote of a quorum present.

Section F. QUORUM

Fifty (50) percent or more of those serving on the Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum for conducting Executive Committee activities.

Section G. LIMITATION OF POWERS

The Executive Committee shall conduct the business of the AGENCY between meetings of the COMMISSION. Actions, taken between COMMISSION meetings, except travel and expense authorizations within budget limitations, shall be subject to ratification by the COMMISSION at its next meeting.

VI. ADVISORY AND AD HOC COMMITTEES

Section A. CLASSIFICATION

1. The COMMISSION may establish one or more Advisory Committees or Ad Committees for whatever purpose it designates.

Section B. MEMBERSHIP

- 1. Membership of each Advisory Committee may be drawn from government services, including, but not limited to, public agencies other than those in the AGENCY, from non-public groups or organizations, or from the general public.
- 2. The membership of each Ad Hoc Committee shall be limited to the duly appointed commissioners or their alternates.
- 3. The duties of each Advisory Committee shall be specified in writing and approved by the COMMISSION.
- 4. Appointment of Committees:

The members of each advisory committee shall be appointed by the Chairman with the approval of the Commission Ad Hoc Committee members appointed by the Chairman.

Section C. MEETINGS

Committees shall meet as necessary to accomplish the tasks assigned.

Section D. OFFICERS

The Chairman of each Advisory Committee shall be elected by the members of the respective committee. The Chairman of each Ad Hoc Committee shall be designated by the Chairman of the COMMISSION.

Section E. VOTING

Passage of any issue before an Advisory or Ad Hoc Committee shall require a majority vote of a quorum present.

Section F. QUORUM

Fifty (50) percent or more of those appointed to serve on a committee shall constitute a quorum for conducting committee activities.

Section G. POWERS AND FUNCTIONS

The Committee shall study and report regarding the specific matters assigned.

VII. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Section A. APPOINTMENT

The Executive Director shall serve at the pleasure of the COMMISSION or under terms of contract approved by COMMISSION.

Section B. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

- 1. The Executive Director shall be responsible for the day-to-day operation and administration of the programs and business of the AGENCY.
- 2. The Executive Director shall be the Secretary of each Advisory Committee and each Ad Hoc Committee, shall attend their meetings and prepare minutes of meetings.
- 3. The Executive Director shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the COMMISSION or the Bylaws.

- 4. The Executive Director shall have authority to hire such staff as provided for in the AGENCY'S budget when authority by the COMMISSION.
- 5. The Executive Director and his/her staff, if any, shall receive such compensation as approved by the COMMISSION.

VIII. <u>RULES OF PROCEDURE</u>

Section A. RESOLUTIONS

- 1. Except resolutions of courtesy, commendations, appreciation, or condolence, no resolution expressing the opinion or policy of the AGENCY on any question shall be considered by the AGENCY, unless it has been submitted to the members of the COMMISSION not less than fourteen (14) days prior to a meeting of the AGENCY. In case of emergency, the COMMISSION may vote to suspend this rule for the item of emergency only.
- 2. No resolution shall be adopted until an opportunity has been afforded for full and free debate thereon.

Section B. RULES

Roberts Rules of Order, as revised to its current edition, shall govern all procedures-of the COMMISSION and its Committees, except as may be set forth in these Bylaws or as may be approved by a vote of three-fourths (3/4) of those present at any such meeting.

IX. AMENDMENTS

Section A.

- 1. These Bylaws may be amended at a meeting where a quorum of members of the COMMISSION is present and then upon affirmative action of the majority of the quorum present.
- 2. Proposed amendments to these Bylaws must first be submitted in writing to the members of the COMMISSION for consideration and study at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of the meeting at which the proposed Bylaws shall be acted upon.

X. <u>EFFECTIVE DATE</u>

These Bylaws or any amendment thereto shall be effective immediately upon adoption by the COMMISSION.

XI. BYLAW AMENDMENT (November 17, 2022)

Section A. LEGAL COMPLIANCE

- 1. All Agency meetings shall be open, public and noticed in conformance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act, California Government Code Section 54950 et seq., as amended and shall be accessible in accordance with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act.
- 2. Special meetings may be called as set forth herein. Notice of special meetings shall be: (i) delivered personally, by mail or electronically, and must be received no later than 24 hours in advance of the meeting, and (ii) state the business to be considered and whether alternative technological means may be used such as telephone or video conferencing, as technological resource availability permits and as permissible by the Ralph M. Brown Act.

Section B. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

- 1. Members of this Agency, its committees or subcommittees or the COMMISSION shall abstain from voting on any issue in which they may be personally interested to avoid a conflict of interest in accordance with state and federal laws and shall refrain from engaging in any behavior that conflicts with the best interest of the Agency as set forth in the Agreement.
- 2. Members of this Agency, its committees or subcommittees or the COMMISSION shall not vote nor attempt to influence any other Agency Member on a matter under consideration by the Agency or any of its committees or subcommittees or the COMMISSION:
 - a. Regarding the provision of services by such Member (or by an entity that such Member represents); or
 - b. That would provide direct financial benefit to such Member, the Member's authorized representative or the immediate family of such authorized representative.
 - c. Engage in any other activity constituting a conflict of interest under state or federal law.
- 3. If a question arises as to whether a conflict exists that may prevent a Member or Member's representative from voting on behalf of a Member, the Chairman or Vice Chairman may consult with the Executive Director to assist them in making that determination.

4. In order to avoid a conflict of interest or the appearance of such conflict, all representatives of the Members or nominees to become Members of the Agency, shall disclose information regarding their private economic interest that may be implicated by their service on the Agency.

Section C. SEVERABILITY

Should any part, term, portion or provision of these Bylaws or amended Bylaws be determined to be in conflict with any law or otherwise unenforceable or ineffectual, the remaining parts, terms, portions or provisions shall be deemed severable and their validity shall not be affected thereby, provided such remaining portions or provisions can be construed in substance to constitute the provisions that the members intended to enact in the first instance.

Section D. CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the Bylaws as amended by the terms in this Section XII (Bylaws Amendment November 17, 2022) were adopted by the Santa Ana River Flood Protection Agency Commission meeting on by a unanimous vote of the quorum present

Herbert I Nakasone, Secretary and Executive Director